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June 18, 2021 

By E-Mail Only to clerk@toronto.ca 

His Worship Mayor John Tory and Members of Council 
City of Toronto 
Toronto City Hall 
100 Queen St. W. 
Toronto, ON M5H 2N2 
 
Attention: Mr. John Elvidge, City Clerk 

Your Worship and Members of Council: 

Re: 411 Victoria Park Avenue, 2510 and 2530 Gerrard Street East  
(the “Subject Lands”) 
DiamondCorp and Kilmer Brownfield (“Diamond-Kilmer”) Development 
Application 
Municipal File Nos.: 19 263629 ESC 20 OZ & 19 263636 ESC 20 SB 

We are counsel to GCD Trustee Limited (“GCD”), the owner of the lands immediately 
east and adjacent to the Subject Lands.  Our client’s lands are municipally known as 
2540 Gerrard Street East and form an irregular-shaped parcel located north and west of 
Gerrard Street East and Clonmore Drive (the “GCD Lands”). We write to provide our 
client’s comments on the applications for Council’s consideration. 

Background 

CreateTO (formerly BuildTO), the former owner of the Subject Lands, has received 
various Council approvals to facilitate the redevelopment of its property, including 
official plan amendments and zoning by-law amendments. GCD was an active 
participant in the approval process at the City and appealed certain of the Council 
approvals to the former Ontario Municipal Board, now continued as the Ontario Land 
Tribunal.  

On June 28, 2016, after detailed negotiation efforts, GCD withdrew its appeal after the 
execution of a Settlement Agreement (the “Agreement”) between GCD and BuildTO 
that is binding on heirs, successors, and purchasers. BuildTO agreed to grant an 
easement in favour of GCD to allow vehicular, pedestrian and other active 
transportation travel over a private roadway to be constructed by BuildTO on the 
Subject Lands (the “Driveway Connection”).  
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In 2019, CreateTO chose Diamond-Kilmer to develop the Subject Lands. The initial 
conceptual plan did not include the planned Driveway Connection and we wrote to the 
City on December 10, 2019 to remind them of the Agreement – which is binding on 
heirs, successors, and purchasers – and the importance of the Driveway Connection. A 
copy of this correspondence is attached, which includes a copy of the Agreement.  

We wrote to the City again on November 30, 2020 to provide comments prior to and for 
consideration at the virtual community consultation meeting in relation to the Subject 
Lands on December 1, 2020, which we attended.  

Driveway Connection 

On December 20, 2019, Diamond-Kilmer filed an application which included the 
potential for the Driveway Connection (the “Application”). In support of the Application, 
a Transportation Impact Study (“TIS”) and Planning Rationale were filed, both of which 
spoke to the importance of the Driveway Connection.  

The TIS stated that “as part of the public street design, a potential connection between 
the Project lands and the GCD lands to the east has been maintained, should that be 
pursued as part of the GCD development”.  

However, on August 19, 2020, Diamond-Kilmer filed a re-submission, which included a 
revised TIS (the “Revised TIS”) and a Planning Rationale Addendum (the “PR 
Addendum”) where the Driveway Connection was removed. The Revised TIS states 
that “through the analysis documented herein, it has been determined that an extension 
of Street A through the adjacent GCD lands is not required to support the proposed 
development”. Neither the Revised TIS or the PR Addendum provide any detail on why 
the Driveway Connection was eliminated, simply stating that it was not required to 
support the proposed development.   

A third re-submission was made on December 22, 2020, with a fourth and final re-
submission being filed with the City on April 28, 2021 (the “Revised Application”).  

Our client retained a transportation engineer to review the Revised Application and 
Revised TIS to determine if proper justification was provided as to why the Driveway 
Connection was eliminated and to provide an opinion on whether the Driveway 
Connection provides a benefit to the Subject Lands or surrounding road network. 

The transportation engineer stated that the Driveway Connection would allow for a 
better distribution of traffic within the GCD Lands, where over 700 residential units are 
proposed with only a single access provided onto Gerrard Street; it also provides an 
alternative access to the GCD Lands for emergency vehicles. Further, the Driveway 
Connection would allow some vehicles to exit directly to Victoria Park Avenue and 
improve the operation of the intersection of Victoria Park Avenue and Gerrard Street. 
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The Driveway Connection would reduce the volume of traffic needing to use that 
intersection and reduce projected delays as a result.   

GCD has been engaged in ongoing without prejudice discussions with Diamond-Kilmer 
aimed at resolving its concerns. While those discussions have been promising, they are 
not concluded, and our client is therefore filing this letter out of an abundance of caution 
and to express our client’s ongoing present concerns. 

We wish to thank Council for taking these comments into consideration, and trust that 
this is satisfactory in expressing our client’s concerns with the proposal. While we 
understand that we are already on the circulation list for this matter, to avoid any 
uncertainty, we also request notice of any decision or passage of any by-law by Council 
regarding this matter.  

We would also appreciate receiving your acknowledgement of receipt of this letter. 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned.   

Yours truly, 
DAVIES HOWE LLP 
 
 
 
 
John M. Alati 
JMA:zf  

 
copy: Rod Hines, Principal Planner, City of Toronto 

Jason Park, Counsel to Diamond-Kilmer 
Client 
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November 30, 2020 

By E-Mail Only to clerk@toronto.ca 

Mr. John Elvidge 
City Clerk (Acting) 
City of Toronto 
Toronto City Hall 
100 Queen St. W., 13th Floor West Tower 
Toronto, ON M5H 2N2 

Dear Mr. Elvidge: 

Re: 411 Victoria Park Avenue, 2510 and 2530 Gerrard Street East  
(the “Subject Lands”) 
DiamondCorp and Kilmer Brownfield (“Diamond-Kilmer”) Development 
Application 
Municipal File Nos.: 19 263629 ESC 20 OZ & 19 263636 ESC 20 SB 

We are counsel to GCD Trustee Limited (“GCD”), the owner of the lands immediately 
east and adjacent to the Subject Lands.  Our client’s lands are municipally known as 
2540 Gerrard Street East and form an irregular-shaped parcel located north and west of 
Gerrard Street East and Clonmore Drive (the “GCD Lands”). We write to provide 
comments for consideration at the virtual community consultation meeting scheduled to 
occur on December 1, 2020 in relation to the development applications on the Subject 
Lands (the “Meeting”).  

Background 

CreateTO (formerly BuildTO), the current owner of the Subject Lands, has received 
various Council approvals to facilitate the redevelopment of its property, including 
official plan amendments and zoning by-law amendments. GCD was an active 
participant in the approval process at the City and appealed certain of the Council 
approvals to the former Ontario Municipal Board, now continued as the Local Planning 
Appeal Tribunal.  

On June 28, 2016, after detailed negotiation efforts, GCD withdrew its appeal after the 
execution of a Settlement Agreement (the “Agreement”) between GCD and BuildTO 
that is binding on heirs, successors, and purchasers. BuildTO agreed to grant an 
easement in favour of GCD to allow vehicular, pedestrian and other active 
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transportation travel over a private roadway to be constructed by BuildTO on the 
Subject Lands (the “Road Connection”).  

In 2019, CreateTO chose Diamond-Kilmer to develop the Subject Lands. The initial 
conceptual plan did not include the planned Road Connection and we wrote to the City 
on December 10, 2019 to remind them of the Agreement and the importance of the 
Road Connection. A copy of this correspondence is attached.  

On December 20, 2019, Diamond-Kilmer filed an application which included the 
potential for the Road Connection (the “Application”). In support of the Application, a 
Transportation Impact Study (“TIS”) and Planning Rationale were filed, both of which 
spoke to the importance of the Road Connection.  

The TIS stated that “as part of the public street design, a potential connection between 
the Project lands and the GCD lands to the east has been maintained, should that be 
pursued as part of the GCD development”.  

However, on August 19, 2020, Diamond-Kilmer filed a re-submission (the 
“Resubmission”), which included a revised TIS (the “Revised TIS”) and a Planning 
Rationale Addendum (the “PR Addendum”) where the Road Connection was removed. 
The Revised TIS states that “through the analysis documented herein, it has been 
determined that an extension of Street A through the adjacent GCD lands is not 
required to support the proposed development”. Neither the Revised TIS or the PR 
Addendum provide any detail on why the Road Connection was eliminated, simply 
stating that it was not required to support the proposed development.   

The planned road network in the Resubmission would conflict with the aforementioned 
provisions of the Agreement requiring inclusion of the Road Connection. We insist that 
any development application submitted by Diamond-Kilmer and CreateTO adhere to the 
terms of the Agreement.  

Further, our client retained a transportation engineer to review the Resubmission and 
Revised TIS to determine if proper justification was provided as to why the Road 
Connection was eliminated and to provide an opinion on whether the Road Connection 
provides a benefit to the Subject Lands or surrounding road network. 

The transportation engineer stated that the Road Connection would allow for a better 
distribution of traffic within the GCD Lands, where over 700 residential units are 
proposed with only a single access provided onto Gerrard Street; it also provides an 
alternative access to the GCD Lands for emergency vehicles. Further, the Road 
Connection would allow some vehicles to exit directly to Victoria Park Avenue and 
improve the operation of the intersection of Victoria Park Avenue and Gerrard Street. 
The Road Connection would reduce the volume of traffic needing to use that 
intersection and reduce projected delays as a result.   



Page 3 

Davies Howe LLP • The Tenth Floor • 425 Adelaide Street West • Toronto • Ontario • M5V 3C1 

 

We trust that this is satisfactory in expressing our client’s concerns with the proposal.  

We would also appreciate the City’s acknowledgement of receipt of this letter. Should 
you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned or my 
associate, Zachary Fleisher.  

Yours truly, 
DAVIES HOWE LLP 
 
 
 
 
John M. Alati 
JMA:zf  

 
copy: Rod Hines, Principal Planner, City of Toronto 

Melissa Walker, Kilmer Brownfield Management Ltd. 
Laurie Payne, DiamondCorp  
Don Logie, CreateTO 
Client 
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